Public Document Pack

Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

730 om Wednesday Town Hall, Main Road,
=UP 30 August 2017 Romford
Members 13: Quorum 5
COUNCILLORS:
Conservative Group Residents’ Group East Havering
(5) (3) Residents’Group 2
Meg Davis (Chairman) Ray Morgon Clarence Barrett
Melvin Wallace (Vice-Chair) Barbara Matthews Darren Wise
Roger Ramsey Barry Mugglestone
Damian White
Osman Dervish
UKIP Group Independent Labour Group
1 Residents’ Group (1)
(1)
Lawrence Webb David Durant Keith Darvill

For information about the meeting please contact:
Debra Marlow tel: 01708 433091
e-mail: debra.marlow@onesource.co.uk




Governance Committee, 30 August 2017

AGENDA ITEMS
1 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman will announce details of the arrangements in case of fire or other
events that might require the meeting room or building’s evacuation.

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE & SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS
(If any) - receive
3 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Members are invited to disclose any interest in any of the items on the agenda at this
point of the meeting.

Members may still disclose any interest in any item at any time prior to the
consideration of the matter.

4 MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4)

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the Committee held on Thursday 20"
July, 2017, and to authorise the Chairman to sign them.

5 CONSTITUTION UPDATE (Pages 5 - 24)
6 CHANGES TO THE STAFF EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURE RULES (Pages 25 - 42)
The Committee will be asked to make decisions as detailed in the report as follows:

1. Amendments to the Chief Officer Appointments Process to reflect non-permanent
appointments.

2. Amendments to the process for making appointments to Chief Officer posts as a
consequence of a senior management restructure or realignment

3. Proposed change of terminology

7 OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY REVIEW - CROSS PARTY REVIEW GROUP TERMS OF
REFERENCE (Pages 43 - 46)

8 APPOINTMENTS TO OTHER ORGANISATIONS, 2017/18 (Pages 47 - 50)

Andrew Beesley
Head of Democratic Services



Agenda Item 4

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Committee Room 3A - Town Hall
20 July 2017 (7.30 - 7.50 pm)

Present:
COUNCILLORS

Conservative Group Meg Davis (Chairman), Melvin Wallace (Vice-Chair),
Roger Ramsey, Damian White and Roger Westwood

Residents’ Group Ray Morgon, Barbara Matthews and
Barry Mugglestone

Labour Group Keith Darvill

Independent Residents  David Durant
Group

Apologies were received for the absence of Councillor Osman Dervish who was
substituted by Councillor Roger Westwood, Councillor Clarence Barrett who was
substituted by Councillor Linda Hawthorn and Councillor Darren Wise, who was
substituted by Councillor Alex Donald.

The Chairman reminded Members of the action to be taken in an emergency.

1 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS
There were no declarations of interest.
2 TERMS AND CONDITIONS REVIEW - DECISION REPORT

The Chief Executive, Andrew Blake-Herbert addressed the Committee in
respect of the Terms and Conditions Review and introduced the report of
Julian Sivill, Strategic Human Resources Partner.

The Terms and Conditions Review had been going on for a while and a
great deal of time had been spent trying to secure the best possible solution
for all Havering Employees. During this time the diligence of the trade
unions, who worked with the Council to make sure the proposals were as
fair, reasonable and consistent as possible, and the support and
professionalism of colleagues has been very much appreciated.

The purpose of the review was twofold:

Page 1



Governance Committee, 20 July 2017

1. To identify and replace those existing Terms and Conditions (T&C'’s)
that were inconsistent, outdated or did not assist in the delivery of
services, and

2. To develop a set of T&C’s that are modern and more fitting to the
Council’s business needs whilst achieving the Council’s medium term
financial plan to deliver savings of £0.5 million in 2017/18.

A provisional set of proposals was received by the Committee in August
2016 which was followed by extensive employee consultation the procedure
for which is set out in detail in paragraphs 10 to 21 of the report.

It was fully appreciated that at the heart of this process were individuals and
families who would have an impact on their take home pay whilst navigating
a way to ensure Havering ran a successful and prosperous Council which
meets the needs of all its residents. T&C’s are crucial to staff morale,
motivation and productivity.

A further update on progress was considered by the Governance
Committee in January, 2017. It was necessary to try and reach a Collective
Agreement and the Trade Unions agreed to ballot staff.

The CE was delighted to announce to the Committee that a Collective
Agreement had been reached following confirmation by the trade unions on
the day of the meeting.

As a result of this, Recommendation 3 in the report was withdrawn and
removed.

Julian Sivill addressed the Committee and talked through the detail of the
report. Following the job evaluation and appeals process Job Evaluation
Outcomes were modelled and an Equalities Impact Analysis was carried
out.

Tables in the report denote the impact on pay. Across the organisation in
relation to basic pay, 77% of employees would see either no change in
basic pay or a slight increase. In relation to the Teaching Assistant 2 roles
the impact is denoted in table 2 on page 8 of the agenda pack. Across the
organisation, the Post Consultation Proposals result in 69.9% of employees
either seeing no change in their contractual pay or will see an increase.

The main conclusions of the Equalities Analysis were that:
e No one group of people with a protected characteristic is significantly
adversely affected as a result of the Council’s proposals, and
e The proposals will have a positive impact on the Gender Pay Gap.

Throughout the consultation period the Council’s aim was to try and reach a
Collective Agreement. It is to the credit of all involved that this has been
possible.

The estimated £0.872 Million cost reduction to the General Fund Budget will

meet the budgeted savings from 2018/19 but there will be a shortfall against
the saving target agreed by Council in 2017/18.

Page 2



Governance Committee, 20 July 2017

3

The Leader congratulated the hard work of all involved both officers and
Trade Unions for the very constructive approach they had taken and noted
that other Councils have already been through this process some without
the same level of agreement and progress

There followed general discussion and the recommendations were put to
the vote.

The recommendations were carried by 12 votes to 1, with Councillor David
Durant voting against.

The Governance Committee:

1. Delegated authority to the Chief Executive to take such actions and
steps necessary for the completion and signing of a Collective
Agreement with trade unions (including the actual signing of the
Collective Agreement document on behalf of the Council). This to
include any necessary changes to the wording of the Collective
Agreement excluding any changes to the substance of the proposals
themselves.

2. Approved the Final (Collective Agreement) Proposals detailed at
Appendix 1 and the recommended Implementation Date of 1°
September, 2017 but delegated authority to the Chief Executive to
adjust that date for  corporate directorates and/or
Community/Voluntary Controlled schools by up to 3 months if
necessary.

3. Approved the proposal to meet the one-off pay protection and other
costs in Community/Voluntary Controlled schools from the Risk
Reserve as detailed at paragraph 24 (Table 5) of the report.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

It was not necessary to exclude the press or public.

Chairman

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



_ Agenda ltem 5
%¢ Havering

it L ONDON BOROUGH

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 30" August, 2017

Subject Heading: Constitution Update
Andrew Blake-Herbert
SLT Lead:
Report Author and contact details: Kathryn Robinson, 01708 432242,
Kathryn.robinson@onesource.co.uk
Policy context: Council Constitution
Financial summary: None

The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council
Objectives

Communities making Havering [x]
Places making Havering i
Opportunities making Havering N
Connections making Havering 0

SUMMARY

During the course of this municipal year it is proposed that parts of the Council’s
Constitution be reviewed and updated. This will focus particularly on the scheme of
officer delegation and the Codes. Consideration will also be given to whether there
are opportunities to make the document more concise and easier to amend where
changes occur. This report notifies members of amendments arising from the
changes in the management and departmental structures and functions. The
report also proposes minor variations to the arrangement of the Members’ Code of
Conduct to make the requirements clearer, and updates members on proposed
steps to be taken by the Monitoring Officer to assist members in understanding
their obligations under the Code. Further reports on proposed changes will be
presented to this Committee during the course of this year.

Page 5


mailto:Kathryn.robinson@onesource.co.uk

Governance Committee 30" August, 2017

RECOMMENDATIONS

That members:
1. Note the updates to the Constitution outlined in this report

2. Agree the proposed changes to the Councillor Code of Conduct be
recommended to Council

REPORT DETAIL

Updates to the Constitution

1. During the course of the last nine months there have been various changes
to the management structure of the Council and the services and functions
carried out by the respective departments. The Senior Leadership Team now
comprises the Chief Executive and four Directors, with departments for
Neighbourhoods, Children, Adults, and the Chief Operating Officer. Within
the Departments the structures have also been revised, for example in the
Neighbourhoods Department there are now three Assistant Director Posts to
lead in the areas of environment, development and housing. The
Constitution records the delegations given to officers to undertake executive
and council functions and it has been amended to reflect the new
departmental and management structure. The type or level of delegation has
not been altered, what has changed are the posts to which those delegations
have been given. The Monitoring Officer has been given authority to make
those changes both directly by Council and in the powers delegated to the
Monitoring Officer in the Constitution. The Monitoring Officer has also made
changes where necessary to update references to legislation. The
constitutional requirements are that such changes be reported to the
Governance Committee.

The Members’ Code of Conduct

2. The Localism Act 2011 requires that all Councils have a Councillor Code of
Conduct. The content is largely a matter for local determination but the Code
must be based on the principles of conduct in public office set out in the
Act. The Council has a Code of Conduct which is included in Part 5 of the
Council's Constitution. Included within the Code are the obligations on
members to record and declare interests. The Localism Act 2011 introduced
the need to record Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) in addition to such
other interests as the Council sought to include in its Code. The Council’s

Page 6



Governance Committee 30" August, 2017

current Code accurately reflects the legal requirements, but would benefit
from a re ordering of the requirements so as to place appropriate weight and
focus on the DPIs and to make the arrangements clearer for Members.

3. There is also a proposed substantive change to the Code, namely deleting
paragraph 8 (3) so that any personal interest arising from membership or
management of bodies specified in the Code are declared at the meeting on
the same basis as other interests.

4. The proposed changes are shown as track changes in the Code attached as
Appendix 1. Governance Committee is advised to recommend these
changes to Full Council.

5. The remit of this Committee includes responsibility for promoting and
maintaining high standards of conduct by the Members and Co-opted
Members of the Council. Members’ understanding of and compliance with
the Code ensures robust Council decision making and enhances public
confidence in the workings of the Council.

6. Various steps are being taken by the Monitoring Officer to raise the profile of
the requirements of the Members’ Code of Conduct. A refresh of Members’
declarations of personal interests is underway with a request to Members to
update their declaration of interests. This was dispatched to members to
coincide with the appointment of members to outside bodies which was the
subject of a separate report before the last meeting of this committee;
membership of outside bodies will need to be included (or in some cases
deleted) from members’ declarations of interests.

7. Members will also be provided with an annual update on conduct issues by
the Monitoring Officer. This will be produced in the summer each year and
will set out guidance on matters such as bias and predetermination and use
of social media and IT. Guidance will also be sent during the year and as
when considered appropriate.

8. Over the course of this municipal year there will be a review of the other
Codes that form part of the Constitution (for example Member/Officer
Relations) and any proposed changes will be brought to this Committee for
consideration. It is important that these are reviewed and refreshed from time
to time. In view of the forthcoming local elections in 2018 and the possibility
of new members, it is an opportune moment to review the Codes and
policies relating to councillors so that they are up to date in readiness for the
2018 members’ induction programme.

Page 7



Governance Committee 30" August, 2017

IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS

Financial implications and risks:

None

Legal implications and risks:

The Localism Act 2011 Chapter 7 requires that the Council has a Code of Conduct,
and sets out provisions for the recording and declaration of members’ Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests and any other interests that the Council may determine in its
Code be disclosed.

Human Resources implications and risks:

None

Equalities implications and risks:

There are no specific equalities implications arising from this report.

Background Documents

None

Page 8



MEMBERS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

Members or co-opted members of the Council of the London Borough of
Havering have a responsibility to represent the community and work
constructively with the Council’s staff and partner organisations to secure better
social, economic and environmental outcomes for all.

Principles of conduct in public office

In accordance with the provisions of the Localism Act 2011, when acting in the
capacity of a Member, they are committed to behaving in a manner that is
consistent with the following principles to achieve best value for the Borough’s
residents and to maintain public confidence in the Council.

SELFLESSNESS: Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the
public interest. They should not do so in order to gain financial or other
material benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends.

INTEGRITY: Holders of public office should not place themselves under
any financial or other obligation to outside individuals or organisations that
might seek to influence them in the performance of their official duties.

OBJECTIVITY: In carrying out public business, including making public
appointments, awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for
rewards and benefits, holders of public office should make choices on
merit.

ACCOUNTABILITY: Holders of public office are accountable for their
decisions and actions to the public and must submit themselves to
whatever scrutiny is appropriate to their office.

OPENNESS: Holders of public office should be as open as possible about
all the decisions and actions that they take. They should give reasons for
their decisions and restrict information only when the wider public interest
clearly demands.

HONESTY: Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private
interests relating to their public duties and to take steps to resolve any
conflicts arising in a way that protects the public interest.

LEADERSHIP: Holders of public office should promote and support these
principles by leadership and example.

Page 9



Personal conduct

Accordingly, Members must act solely in the public interest and:

Never improperly confer an advantage or a disadvantage or seek
financial or other material benefits for family members, friends or close
associates

Never place themselves under a financial or other obligation to outside
individuals or organisations that might seek to influence them in the
performance of the their official duties

Make all decisions on merit alone

Are accountable to the public for their decisions and must co-operate
fully with whatever scrutiny is appropriate to their office

Be open as possible about their decisions and actions, and those of the
Council, be prepared to explain the reasons for those decisions and
actions

Disclose any private interests, pecuniary or non-pecuniary, that relate to
their public duties and take steps to resolve any conflicts of interest that
arise, including registering and declaring interests in accordance with the
Council's agreed procedures

Ensure that they do not use, nor authorise the use by others of, facilities
provided by the Council for any purpose that would be improper,
including for party political purposes, and must have regard to any Local
Authority Code of Publicity made under the Local Government Act 1986

Promote and support high standards of conduct when serving in their
public post, in particular as characterised by the requirements of this
Code, by leadership and by example

As a Member of the Council, each Member will in particular address the
statutory principles of the code of conduct by:

Championing the needs of all residents and putting those interests first.

Dealing with representations or enquiries from residents, members of
local communities and visitors fairly, appropriately and impartially.

Not allowing other pressures, including their own financial interests or
those of others connected to them, to deter them from pursuing
constituents' casework, the interests of the Borough or the good
governance of the Council in a proper manner.

Exercising independent judgement and not compromising their position
by placing themselves under obligations to outside individuals or

Page 10



organisations who might seek to influence the way they perform their
duties as members/co-opted members of the Council.

Listening to the interests of all parties, including relevant advice from
statutory and other professional officers, taking all relevant information
into consideration, remaining objective and making decisions on merit.

Being accountable for their decisions and co-operating when scrutinised
internally and externally, including by local residents.

Contributing to making the Council’'s decision-making processes as open
and transparent as possible to enable residents to understand the
reasoning behind those decisions and to be informed when holding
members to account but restricting access to information when the wider
public interest or the law requires it

Behaving in accordance with all the Council’s legal obligations, alongside
any requirements contained within its policies, protocols and procedures,
including on the use of the Council’s resources.

Valuing colleagues and staff and engaging with them in an appropriate
manner and one that underpins the mutual respect between Members
and staff that is essential to good local government.

Always treating people with respect, including the organisations and
public they engage with and those they work alongside.

Providing leadership through behaving in accordance with these
principles when championing the interests of the community with other
organisations as well as within the Council.

Members will be expected to comply with the Council's policies on Equality in
Employment, Equality in Service Provision and Harassment and Bullying at
Work.

Interests

1 Notificati £ int ¢

{1

\
7

You must-within-28-days-of your-election or appointment-to-office (where
that-is-later);

{a) netify-the-Menitering Officer of your disclosable pecuniary-interests
that-are notifyable-underthe Localism-Act 2011-and-The Relevant
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary-tnteresty Regulations-2012for
inclusion-inthe register of inlerests.and

Page 11



(b ify_the Monitorina_Off . i  the_details—of "
persenalinterests,-where-they-fall within-the-following-descriptionsfor
inclusion-in-the register-of-interests.

(2)—You-have-a—personal-interest-in—any-business—of-your—authority-where
either—

o) itpela s dis i
()—any-bedy-of which-you-are-a-member-or-in-a-position-of- general

Page 12



: :
2 Disclosure-of personal-interests

H}—S&bjegmefsub—pamgraph&@—te—{é}rwhef&yewhav&a{mma
described-in-paragraph-1-abeve or-in-paragraph-(2) below-in-any-business




must -ensure that any written statement of that decision records the
existence and-nature of that interest

3 Reaist ‘i
Wmmm%%mmlm&}mhmﬂem
A%WWS@%—W#M%MWBHMW%@H%MHWM
an-the authority s website:

1 Sensitive_int I

WWBWSW%MS@G&W&BM%&@B@B@W&SPGM‘G&GM@&




Nete: In-addition Standing Order-X requires-you-to-leave-the-room-where-the
A erainnien ) : : I skl

(3} Where you have a-pecuniary-interestin-any business of your- authority,-you
mawﬁen@ameehag—bu%eﬂﬁepthe—p&;pes&eﬂmakmgwp;esen&amn&

Page 15



6 Interests arising-in-relation-te-the Overview-and Scrutiny Board-or-Sub-
Copgmiitans

In any-business before-the Overview-and Scrutiny Beard or relevant Sub-
GCommittee of your-authority (or-of a sub-commitiee-of sush-a-committee)
where—

(a} -that business relates to-a-decision-made (whether implemented-or
notyor action taken by the executive or another of your-authority's
commiliees, sub-commitlees. joint commitiees orjoint sub-

committees;and
(b)-atthe-time-the-decision-was-made-or-action-was-taken-you-were-a

member of the execulive, committee-sub-committee joint-commitiee or
jointsub-committee mentioned in-paragraph-(a)and you were preseant
when-that decision-was-made-or-action-was-taken;

You-may-only-attend a meeting of- the Overview-and-Serutiny-Board-or relevant
Sub-Committee for the-purpose-of answering-questions-or-giving-evidence

relating-to-the-business.—and-you-mustleave-the room where the meeting-i1s-held
immediately-aftermaking representations, answering questions-or giving
evidence:

'Disclosable pecuniary interests
This nete-section explains the requirements of the Localism Act 2011 (Ss 29-

34) and The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations
2012, in relation to disclosable pecuniary interests.

These provisions are enforced by criminal sanction. They-come-into-forceont
July 2012

1. Notification of disclosable pecuniary interests

Within 28 days of becoming a member or co-opted member, you must notify the
Monitoring Officer of any ‘disclosable pecuniary interests’. You must within 28
days of becoming aware of any new disclosable pecuniary interest or a change
to a disclosable pecuniary interest which is not included in the council's
Rreqister of linterests notify the Monitoring Officer.

A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself or an interest of which
you are aware of your partner (which means spouse or civil partner, a person
with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person with whom you are
living as if you are civil partners) within the following descriptions:

(In the extracts from the Regulations below, ‘M’ means you and ‘relevant
person’ means you and your partner, as above)

" The provisions concerning DPIs have been moved to the start of the interests section as these are the
statutory provisions and have potential criminal consequences and it is important that they are at the front
of members minds when considering their interests.

Page 16




Subject

Prescribed description

Employment, office, trade,
profession or vacation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or
vocation carried on for profit or gain.

Sponsorship

Any payment or provision of any other financial
benefit (other than from the relevant authority)
made or provided within the relevant period in
respect of any expenses incurred by M in carrying
out duties as a member, or towards the election
expenses of M.

This includes any payment or financial benefit
from a trade union within the meaning of the
Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation)
Act 1992.

Contracts

Any contract which is made between the relevant
person (or a body in which the relevant person
has a beneficial interest) and the relevant
authority—

(a) under which goods or services are to be
provided or works are to be executed; and

(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land

Any beneficial interest in land which is within the
area of the relevant authority.

Licences

Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy
land in the area of the relevant authority for a
month or longer.

Corporate tenancies

Any tenancy where (to M’s knowledge )—

(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and
(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant
person has a beneficial interest.

Securities

Any beneficial interest in securities of a body
where—

(a) that body (to M’s knowledge) has a place of
business or land in the area of the relevant
authority; and

(b) either—

(i) the total nominal value of the securities
exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total
issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than
one class, the total nominal value of the shares of
any one class in which the relevant person has a
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the
total issued share capital of that class.

Page 17




These descriptions on interests are subject to the following definitions;

“‘the Act” means the Localism Act 2011;

“body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest” means a firm in
which the relevant person is a partner or a body corporate of which the relevant
person is a director, or in the securities of which the relevant person has a
beneficial interest;

“director” includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial
and provident society;

“land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which
does not carry with it a right for the relevant person (alone or jointly with
another) to occupy the land or to receive income;

“M” means a member of a relevant authority;

“‘member” includes a co-opted member;

“relevant authority” means the authority of which M is a member;

“relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on which
M gives a notification for the purposes of section 30(1) or section 31(7), as the
case may be, of the Act;

‘relevant person” means M or any other person referred to in section 30(3)(b) of
the Act;

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds,
units of a collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial
Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other
than money deposited with a building society.

2 Register of interests

Any interests notified to the Monitoring Officer will be included in the register of
interests.

A copy of the register will be available for public inspection and will be published
on the authority’s website.

3 Sensitive interests

Where you consider that disclosure of the details of a disclosable pecuniary
interest could lead to you, or a person connected with you, being subject to
violence or intimidation, and the Monitoring Officer agrees, if the interest is
entered on the register, copies of the register that are made available for
inspection and any published version of the register will exclude details of the
interest, but may state that you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, the
details of which are withheld under Section 32(2).

4 Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest
A) If you are present at a meeting of the authority, or any committee,
sub-committee, joint committee or joint sub-committee of the

authority, and you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter
to be considered or being considered at the meeting,

Page 18



1. You may not participate in any discussion of the matter at the
meeting.

2. You may not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the
meeting.

3. If the interest is not registered, you must disclose the interest to
the meeting.

4. If the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a
pending notification, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the
interest within 28 days.

Noteln-addition,-Standing-Order-X+equires-yYou mustte leave the room
where the meeting is held while any discussion or voting takes place.

B) Where an executive member may discharge a function alone and
becomes aware of a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter being
dealt with or to be dealt with by her/him, the executive member must
notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any
steps or further steps in the matter.

5 Dispensations

The authority may grant you a dispensation, but only in limited circumstances,
to enable you to participate and vote on a matter in which you have a
disclosable pecuniary interest. Such applications should be made to the
Monitoring Officer.

6 Offences

It is a criminal offence to

o Fail to notify the Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary interest
within 28 days of election

e Fail to disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest at a meeting if it is not on
the register

e Fail to notify the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of a disclosable
pecuniary interest that is not on the register that you have disclosed to a
meeting

e Participate in any discussion or vote on a matter in which you have a
disclosable pecuniary interest

Page 19



e As an executive member discharging a function acting alone, and having
a disclosable pecuniary interest in such a matter, failing to notify the
Monitoring Officer within 28 days of the interest.

e Knowingly or recklessly providing information that is false or misleading
in notifying the Monitoring Officer of a disclosable pecuniary interest or in
disclosing such interest to a meeting

The criminal penalties available to a court are to impose a fine not exceeding
level 5 on the standard scale and disqualification from being a councillor for up
to 5 years.

Other types of Interest that must be disclosed and may be registered

Note: the provisions in respect of Discloseable Pecuniary Interests above take
precedence over the provisions below about other interests.

7 Personal Interests

(1) You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where you
| do not have a discloseable personal interest and either—

(a) it relates to or is likely to affect—

(i) any body of which you are a member or in a position of general
control or management and to which you are appointed or
nominated by your authority;

(i) any body—

{bby(aa)  exercising functions of a public nature;
(bb) directed to charitable purposes; or

(cc) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of
public opinion or policy (including any political party or trade
union), of which you are a member or in a position of
general control or management;

(iii) any easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which
does not carry with it a right for you (alone or jointly with another)
to occupy the land or to receive income.

| (23) You must, within 28 days of becoming a member or co-opted member, or
becoming aware of any new personal interest or change to any personal
interest registered under this paragraph notify the Monitoring Officer of the
details of that new interest or change.

8 Disclosure of personal interests

(1) Subject to sub-paragraphs (2) to (5), where you have a personal interest
| described in paragraph 7(1) above or as set out in paragraph (2A) below in
any business of your authority, and where you are aware or ought

Page 20



reasonably to be aware of the existence of the personal interest, and you
attend a meeting of your authority at which the business is considered, you
must disclose to that meeting the existence and nature of that interest at
the commencement of that consideration, or when the interest becomes
apparent.

(2) (A) You have a personal interest in any business of your authority

3)

{#)(i) where a decision in relation to that business might reasonably
be regarded as affecting your well-being or financial position or
the well-being or financial position of a relevant person to a
greater extent than the majority of other council tax payers,
ratepayers or inhabitants of the electoral division or ward, as the
case may be, affected by the decision, or

(B) In sub-paragraph (2)(A), a relevant person is—

(i) a member of your family or any person with whom you have a
close association; or

(i) any person or body who employs or has appointed such
persons, any firm in which they are a partner, or any company of
which they are directors;

(ii) any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial
interest in a class of securities exceeding the nominal value of
£25,000; or

(iv) any body of a type described in paragraph 47(12)(a)(i) or (ii).

Where you have a personal-interest-in—any business—sf-your-authority
which-if not a-disclosable-pecuniary-interests-and-relates to or-is-likely to

affecta—person—described-in—paragraph—H2)(@)i)-or H{2)(a)(ii}(aa), you
need enly disclese to the-meeting the-existense-and-nature-of-thatinterest
when you-address-the meeting-on-that-business.

| (34) Where you have a personal interest but, by virtue of paragraph 43,

sensitive information relating to it is not registered in your authority’s
register of members’ interests, you must indicate to the meeting that you
have a personal interest, but need not disclose the sensitive information to
the meeting.

| (45) Where you have a personal interest that is not a disclosable pecuniary

interest in any business of your authority and you have made an executive
decision in relation to that business, you must ensure that any written
statement of that decision records the existence and nature of that interest.

Non participation in case of pecuniary interest

Where you have a personal interest in any business of your authority you
also have a pecuniary interest in that business where the interest is one

Page 21



(2)

which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would
reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your
judgement of the public interest and where that business—

(a) affects your financial position or the financial position of a person or
body described in paragraphs 74(12) or 82(2) ;or

(b) relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence,
permission or registration in relation to you or any person or body
described in paragraph.

Subject to paragraph (3) and (4), where you have a pecuniary interest in
any business of your authority—

(a) You may not participate in any discussion of the matter at the
meeting.

(b) You may not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the
meeting.

(c) If the interest is not registered, you must disclose the interest to the
meeting.

(d) If the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a pending
notification, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest
within 28 days.

You must leave the room where the meeting is held while any discussion or
voting takes place.

(3)

(4)

Where you have a pecuniary interest in any business of your authority, and
it is not a disclosable pecuniary interest, you may attend a meeting but
only for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or
giving evidence relating to the business, provided that the public are also
allowed to attend the meeting for the same purpose, whether under a
statutory right or otherwise and you leave the room where the meeting is
held immediately after making representations, answering questions or
giving evidence.

Subject to you disclosing the interest at the meeting, you may attend a
meeting and vote on a matter where you have a pecuniary interest that is
not a disclosable pecuniary interest, that relates to the functions of your
authority in respect of—

(a) housing, where you are a tenant of your authority provided that those
functions do not relate particularly to your tenancy or lease;

(b) school meals or school transport and travelling expenses, where you
are a parent or guardian of a child in full time education, or are a
parent governor of a school, unless it relates particularly to the school
which the child attends;

Page 22



(c) statutory sick pay under Part Xl of the Social Security Contributions
and Benefits Act 1992, where you are in receipt of, or are entitled to
the receipt of, such pay;

(d) an allowance, payment or indemnity given to members;
(e) any ceremonial honour given to members; and

(f)  setting council tax or a precept under the Local Government Finance
Act 1992.

(5) Where, as an executive member, you may discharge a function alone, and
you become aware of a pecuniary interest that is not a disclosable
pecuniary interest in a matter being dealt with, or to be dealt with by you,
you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any
steps or further steps in the matter, or seek improperly to influence a
decision about the matter.

| 610 Interests arising in relation to the Overview and Scrutiny Board or
Sub-Committees

In any business before the Overview and Scrutiny Board or relevant Sub-
Committee of your authority (or of a sub-committee of such a committee)
where—

(a) that business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or
not) or action taken by the executive or another of your authority’s
committees, sub-committees, joint committees or joint sub-
committees; and

| te)(b) at the time the decision was made or action was taken, you were
a member of the executive, committee, sub-committee, joint committee
or joint sub-committee mentioned in paragraph (a) and you were
present when that decision was made or action was taken,

you may only attend a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Board or relevant
Sub-Committee for the purpose of answering questions or giving evidence
relating to the business, and you must leave the room where the meeting is held
immediately after making representations, answering questions or giving
evidence.

Page 23



Page 24



_ Agenda Item 6
%¢ Havering

i L ONDON BOROUGH

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 30" August 2017

Subject Heading: 1. Amendments to the Chief Officer
Appointments Process to reflect
non-permanent appointments.

2. Amendments to the process for
making appointments to Chief
Officer posts as a consequence of
a senior management restructure
or realignment

3. Proposed change of terminology

SLT Lead: Andrew Blake Herbert, Chief Executive
and Head of Paid Service

Report Author and contact details: Caroline Nugent, Director of Human
Resources and Organisational

Development — oneSource

Policy context: The Councils Constitution sets out in
Part 3: Responsibility for Functions,
Section 1.2: Functions delegated to
general council committees, that the
Appointments  Sub-Committee  will
appoint senior officers i.e. Director,
Assistant Director and Head of Service
(where reporting directly to the
Director). However, there is no
reference made regarding where the
responsibility lies for senior officer
appointments made on a temporary
basis (i.e. interim, temporary or fixed
term) either to cover a permanent post
or for an appointment to a
temporary/fixed term post at this level.

Financial summary: There are no financial implications arising
from these proposed changes to
procedures. However implementation of
them may have financial implications
which should be fully assessed prior to
any decision being taken.

Page 25



Governance Committee, 30" August 2017

The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council Objectives

Havering will be clean and its environment will be cared for ]

People will be safe, in their homes and in the community 0

Residents will be proud to live in Havering [X]
SUMMARY

Responsibility for the permanent appointment of senior officers that fall under the
JNC for Chief Officers’ term and conditions of employment (i.e. Directors, Assistant
Directors and Heads of Service) is delegated to the Appointment Sub-Committee
under the Councils Constitution — Part 3 — Responsibility for Functions, Section 1.2
— Functions delegated to general council committees.

However, the Constitution is silent on where responsibility lay for non-permanent
appointments (i.e. interim, temporary or fixed term) to these posts. Following the
recent changes to the reformed intermediaries legislation (known as IR35) it
became necessary to cover two key senior posts at very short notice on a fixed
term contract basis. Due to the urgency of the situation, the Chief Executive sought
the permission of the Appointment Sub-Committee members to make these fixed
term appointments (of 12 months) without the need for an Appointment Sub-
Committee Panel.

No objections to this proposal were received from members, so the two fixed term
appointments (of 12 months) were made to the Head of Communications and
Section 151 Officer posts.

It is recognised that there may be occasions in the future where non-permanent
appointments to this level of post may be necessary. Therefore, Part 3, Section 1.2
of the Councils Constitution should be amended to clarify the responsibility for non-
permanent appointments.

In addition, it is proposed that the process for making appointments to Chief Officer
posts as a consequence of a senior management restructure or realignment is
reviewed and amended to ensure that it remains fit for purpose.

Finally, it is proposed that the terminology used in Part 3, Section 1.2 of the
Council’'s Constitution is simplified and standardised so that job titles such as
Director, Assistant Director and Head of Service are replaced with the generic
terms of Chief/Deputy Chief Officer and/or officers that fall under the JNC for Chief
Officers term and conditions of employment. This will result in fewer amendments
as a result of job tittle changes in the future.

Page 26



Governance Committee, 30" August 2017

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Members:

1. Agree to the proposals set out in paragraphs 7-9 of this report for non-
permanent appointments to senior posts that fall under the JNC for Chief
Officers’ term and conditions of employment. The proposed changes to
the Staff Employment Procedure Rules are shown as track changes in
the document attached as Appendix 1.

2. Agree to the changes proposed set out in paragraphs 12-15 of this report
to the process for making appointments to Chief Officer posts as a
consequence of a senior management restructure or realignment and
that the policy set out in Appendix 2 is amended as appropriate.

3. Agree to the amendment in terminology used in Part 3, Section 1.2 of the
Councils Constitution and the Staff Employment Procedure Rules in Part
4 of the Constitution to replace job titles such as Director, Assistant
Director and Head of Service with the generic terms of Chief/Deputy
Chief Officer and/or officers that fall under the JNC for Chief Officers
terms and conditions of employment as shown in track changes in the
documents attached as Appendix 1.

4. Agree that the constitutional changes in recommendations 1 and 3 above
be reported to Council for final agreement and for the authority to be
given to the Monitoring Officer to make those changes to the
Constitution.

REPORT DETAIL

1. Amendments to the Chief Officer appointments process to reflect non-
permanent appointments

2. The Council’s Constitution sets out in Part 3: Responsibility for Functions,
Section 1.2: Functions delegated to general council committees that the
Appointments Sub-Committee will appoint senior officers, including Chief
Officers and Deputy Chief Officers. The processes are set out in further
detail in the Staff Employment Procedure Rules in Part 4 of the
Constitution.

3. However, there is no reference made regarding responsibility for non-
permanent appointments (i.e. interim, temporary or fixed term) to these
senior posts.

4. As a result of the recent changes to the reformed intermediaries legislation

(known as IR35) which came into force in the public sector on the 6™ April
2017, it became necessary to take urgent action in respect of two key

Page 27



Governance Committee, 30" August 2017

senior posts — the Head of Communications and the Section 151 Officer
posts, both of which were being covered by interim arrangements.

5. In order to comply with the IR35 legislation at short notice and to ensure
that both critical posts remained covered, it became necessary to offer fixed
term contracts to both of the current interims.

6. No objections to this proposal were received from members, so the two
fixed term appointments (of 12 months) were made to the Head of
Communications and Section 151 Officer posts.

7. It is recognised that there may be occasions in the future where non-
permanent appointments to this level of post may be necessary. Therefore,
Part 3, Section 1.2 of the Councils Constitution should be amended to
clarify the responsibility for non-permanent appointments

8. It is proposed that the Staff Employment Procedure Rules should be
amended to reflect the following:

9. Responsibility for the appointment of Chief Officers on a temporary basis
(including ‘Acting Up’ or ‘Secondment’ arrangements), covering either a
permanent or temporary post for a period of up to a maximum of 12
months is delegated to the Head of Paid Service. Any extension to the
temporary arrangement beyond the initial 12 month period will require the
approval of the Appointment Sub-Committee and in the case of
temporary/fixed term employment contracts this will be limited to a further
maximum period of 6 months.

10. Responsibility for the appointment of Chief Officers on a temporary basis
(including ‘Acting Up’ or ‘Secondment’ arrangements), covering either a
permanent or temporary post for a period of more than 12 months will be
a matter for the Appointment Sub-Committee.

11.Amendments to the process for making appointments to Chief Officer
posts as a consequence of a senior management restructure or
realignment.

12. At the meeting of the Appointments Committee on 20™ May 2008, and as a
precursor to the Senior Management Realignment in that year, members
approved a report on the process for making appointments to Chief Officer
posts as a consequence of a senior management realignment (extract from
that report attached at Appendix 2).

13. As this process was agreed by members some 9 years ago, it has been
reviewed to ensure that it remains fit for purpose and the following
amendments are proposed:

14.Voluntary Redundancy — that requests for voluntary redundancy made by
Chief Officers are considered and approved by the Head of Paid Service

Page 28



Governance Committee, 30" August 2017

after consultation with the Director of HR&OD and Director of Legal or their
designated officers.

15. Assimilation Process — clarification that in circumstances where assimilation
is uncontested (i.e. there are sufficient suitable alternative posts for
displaced Chief Officers), decisions relating to the appointment of Chief
Officers are delegated to the Head of Paid Service after consultation with
the Director of HR&OD or their designated officer. This is because the
Council is required to offer a displaced Chief Officer any suitable alternative
employment that may be available or which may become available as a
consequence of any re-organisation giving rise to the abolition of the chief
officers post.

16. Assimilation Process — in circumstances where assimilation is contested
(i.e. there are insufficient suitable alternative posts for displaced Chief
Officers), the decision relating to whether a one or two stage appointment
process is required is delegated to the Head of Paid Service after
consultation with the Director of HR&OD or their designated officer. All
decisions on final appointments in these circumstances will be made by the
Appointment Sub-Committee.

17.Redeployment — in circumstances where the Director of HR&OD (or other
designated officer) has formed the view that suitable alternative
employment may be available, the decision relating to whether a one or two
stage appointment process is required is delegated to the Head of Paid
Service after consultation with the Director of HR&OD or their designated
officer. All decisions on final appointments in these circumstances will be
made by the Appointment Sub-Committee. Appointments in these
circumstances will be subject to a 28 day trial period as required in law.

18.Proposed change of terminology

19.1t is proposed that the terminology used in the Terms of Reference to this
Committee and the Staff Employment Procedure Rules of the Council’s
Constitution are simplified and standardised so that job titles such as
Director, Assistant Director and Head of Service are replaced with the
generic terms of ‘Chief/Deputy Chief Officer and/or officers that fall under
the JNC for Chief Officers terms and conditions of employment’. This will
result in fewer amendments as a result of any job tittle changes in the
future.

IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS

Financial implications and risks:

There are no financial implications or risks arising from these proposed changes to
procedures. However it is noted that the implementation of these proposals (i.e.

Page 29



Governance Committee, 30" August 2017

appointment of senior officers/approval of voluntary redundancies) will have
financial implications. The financial implications of individual decisions should be
assessed on a case by case and raised through the appropriate channels.
Funding should be confirmed prior to any decision being implemented.

Legal implications and risks:

With regards the proposed changes to the process for making appointments to
Chief Officer posts as a consequence of a senior management restructure or
realignment, the Council must comply with all legal requirements and conditions of
service currently in force when considering assimilations and potential
redundancies. Failure to do so may lead to an Employment Tribunal complaint as
well as significantly increasing the risk that an Employment Tribunal will make an
adverse finding against the Council, resulting in additional expenditure.

The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001 as amended
(2015) provide for different appointment and dismissal arrangements in relation to
senior officer posts; the Head of Paid Service, Statutory Chief Officers ( e.g.
Children and Adult services Directors), non Statutory Chief Officers (officers
reporting to the Head of Paid Service) Deputy Chief Officers (reporting directly to a
Chief Officer) and officers directly accountable to the Council or its Committees.
Those arrangements are reflected in the Staff Employment Procedure Rules. The
JNC terms and conditions of employment for Chief Officers only applies to this
group of officers and accordingly the change to the terminology in the Rules will
avoid amendments where job titles of senior staff are changed. It is advised that
the proposed amendments in relation to non-permanent appointments of senior
officers provide useful clarity on the process to be applied.

Human Resources implications and risks:

The implications for individual employees are set out in the body of this report. The
decision has no human resource implications for the wider workforce nor for the
Council as a whole.

Equalities implications and risks:

The process adopted for selecting chief officers for appointment or for redundancy
must be applied in a consistent and non-discriminatory basis and must be free from
any unlawful bias on the founds of gender, race, disability, age or other protected
characteristic or material factor set out in the relevant employment and equalities
legislation.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

Page 30



“Jaguiaw JauIge ) auo Jses| Je apnjoul Isnw 9aiwiwo)) sjuswiulioddy ay | "sspiwiwo) suswjiuloddy ay)
Aq yusunuiodde ue yons jo uonepusWWOIa] 8yl BUIMO||0] 821AI8S pled 10 pesH a8y} Jo Juswjulodde ay) aaoidde |m J1ouno) |Inj 8y

92IAI3S pied JO pedaH jo jusunuioddy

‘Aldde |jeys sainpaooid juswilinioal [ensn s [IDUNOYD 8y} ‘Yels Jo siaquiaw

Bunsixs sy} Buowe Eo._u_ KJoAISN|oxa apew aq EwEE_oaam ay) 1eyy pasodoud Jou SI )l puB-esiAteSo-pESH-e-10-46}90H094Resode€
1951 JUSWAO[JUWS JO SUONIPUOD puB Wiia} 18010 JoIyD 1o}

INT 8yl _mvcz |lerieyl wbmo_tc ho\ucm _ou_to IE][VEe) >Samn_.cm_:o 10 90IMSG pied 10 peaH e juiodde 0) sesodoud |1oUno) ay) a1aypn

jJuawinIoay
‘10108110 | 1SertinsexseiS-Anrde e 10 /pue SadIn0say UBWNH Jo 1030aliq o Ajioyine ay) Jnoyum

pajulodde aq |m diysuolje|al e yons saliejoap Oym ajepipued oN ‘suosiad yons jo Jsuped ay) Jo (Je]ls |Iounod Jo Jaquiawl JO Jof|lounod
Bunsixs ue 0) pajejal ale Asy) Jayloym Bunum ul a1els o} Jels Jo Jaquiaw e se Juswyulodde Joj alepipued Aue yse jleys |Iouno) 8yl
suonese|daqg

‘louno) a8y} yyum uswiuiodde Aue oy uossad Aue Joj poddns %99S ||IMm J0J|IoUN0D ON

"uoljeLLIOUI JUBWINIDaIL Aue Ul papn[oul 8 (|eys Juswalels siy] "[1ouno)
sy} yum juswiuiodde Aue Joj Jojjiounod Aue Jo poddns ay) syess Ajpoalipul Jo Aoaaip oym Jueaijdde Aue Aflienbsip |jim [ilounoD a8y |

juswiuiodde 10j oddns Bupoasg

L

juswijuiodde pue Juawi}iniday

SIATNY FJHANAIO0™Ud LNFJINAOTdINS 44V1S



5. Appointment of Osmmacmuﬁm G_:.wn Om_nm_. and/or om_oo_.m that fall under Em JNC for Chief Officers term and conditions of
m:._n_oE.:ma De

Cabinet BQBUQ

An offer of mBU_ov\Bm:ﬂ as Os_mQUmuc?. Chief Om_om_, m:a\oq o:_oma Emﬁ fall c:aoﬂ ﬁ:m JNC d.o_. Or_mﬁ Officers term m:a conditions of

made only <<:m8 no Em__-ﬁoc:ama oc_mo:o: from any BmBUm_, 9« ﬁso Omc_:mﬁ has been received (as set out in rule 154 cm_oév z o

66-Non Permanent Appointment of Chief/Deputy Chief Officer and/or officers that fall under the JNC for Chief Officers term m@
conditions of employment D.

i)Responsibility for the appointment of such officers on a temporary basis (including ‘Acting Up’ or ‘Secondment’ arrangements),

covering either a permanent or temporary post for a period of up to 2a maximum of 12 months is delegated to the Head of Paid
Service.

i) Any extension to the temporary arrangement beyond the initial 12 month period will require the approval of the Appointment Sub-
Committee and in the case of temporary and fixed term employment contracts this will be limited to a further maximum period of 6 months.

evel-may-only-be-appeinted-to-by-members-if they-are-political-assistants-as




TUSTISSIE 31} 01 Ipeur 3q JUSWPUSUIE TOHT AUR P[NOYS UOISIA0IA oY1 UT PaUCHUSW SaJep oy a1epdn O] Paau 3y} SPIOAE aJep IB[NoNIed € 0] 30usiajal oy suiAoudy (|

‘'suojenbal A1oinels yym aosuepioode
ui pue ‘dnoub [esnijod jey) Jo saysIm syl Yum adueplooade Ul apew aq |jeys dnoib jesnijod e 03 juelsisse ue Jo Jusuwiuloddy

sdnoub |eonijod o) syuelsissy "6 _

e-."Bulieney _
Jo sybno.iog uopuo ay) ussmiaq Juswaalby bcocS,cEmE_ ®£ JO suoisinoid 8y} 0} juensind UmE_oaam aq __msw mo_:omoco
Jo (J019a1iq & 01 Ajjoalip Hodal AaUl 21auM) 92IAI9S JO speaH pue si0j0alig Aindaqgauelsissy ‘sio)o0aaiq ‘Jooaaiq Buibeue sy _

$10}28.iQ 92IN0S3UO Jo Jusujuioddy 28 |

aje)g JO Alejaldasg ay) }Nnsuod jsnw AlIoyiny [B207 au} yjesH di|qnd Jo J0joaliq 8yi Jo Jusuwijulodde sy}

Buneuiwla) aiojag "esniwwo)) sjuswuioddy Alosiapy ayj AQ apew aq [|eys YleaH 21ignd Jo J0}oalid 8y} jo juswiulodde sy "ujesH olgqnd
O J0}28JIJ 9Y] SB umouy| 8q 0] SI pue AJLUoyine |Bd0| 8y) JO JB21JJO UB SB UMOUY 8q 0] SI [enpiAlpul 8y ‘uonjeinbas Aq paiajuod Aue Buipnioul
‘suonouny yyieay olgnd sanuoyine [eoao) [je oy Ajljigisuodsal @Aey 0} [enpiAipul ue juiodde ‘ajels Jo Auejaidas syl yum Apulol ‘g0z 10V aied
[el00S pue yjeaH au) Jo O¢ uoioag AQq papuawe se 900¢ 10V 921A18S U)jeaH |euoiieN 8y} JO € Bed YlIim sdueplodde Ul jsnwl [1Iouno)d ay

UleaH 21|qnd 40 1030a11( Jo Juswiuioddy |

EEN TN ekg)
-qng Justuioddy 9y) JOJ JajewW B aq [IM SUIUOW ¢ | Uey] a10W Jo polad e 10} 1s0d Aleiodws) Jo Jusuewlad e Jay}id BuliaA0d

(SjuSWiSbuUBIIE JuslWipuodas, 10 ,d() bUndy, Buipnjoul) SISeq AIeiodwis) e Uo SJa01jjo 4ons Jo Juswiuiodde oy} 1o} Ajijigisuodsay (1l

Page 33



142.

Disciplinary action

No disciplinary action in respect of the Head of Paid Service, the Monitoring Officer or the Chief Finance Officer, except action
described in paragraph 1140 below, may be taken other than in accordance with a recommendation in a report made by a Panel of
Appointments Sub-Committee under regulation 6 of the Local Authorities (Sstanding Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations
2015.

Suspension

The Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer may be suspended by the Council whilst an investigation

takes place into alleged misconduct. That suspension will be on full pay and should last no longer than two months. In exceptional
circumstances, the decision to suspend may be made by a Deputy-Chief ExeeutiveSLT Director in conjunction with the Director of
Human Resources and Organisational- Development Change; this decision must be notified to all councillors as soon as possible.

Independent person

No other disciplinary action may be taken in respect of any of the officers referred to in 109 above except in accordance with a
recommendation in a report made by a Panel of the Appointments Sub-Committee

Page 34

Councillors will not be involved in the disciplinary action against any officer below Head of Service level except where:
(a) such involvement is necessary for any investigation or inquiry into alleged misconduct

(b) the Council's disciplinary, capability and related procedures, as adopted from time to time may allow a right of appeal to
members in respect of disciplinary action.

Dismissal



ssao0.d |essiwsiq

wswAojdws Jo suolpuod pue swua) ajeudosdde ay) yum asueplodde Ul 8q jshw sjuswiuiodde yang "paisapisuod

pue paAladal usaq aAey suonoalqo pue suoleinbal yim asuepiooade ul ‘Jaulqe) o) pasiApe usaq sey co;mo_Eoc a)eudoidde ay}
[nun LoE_oaam ayl Aq wumE aq jou Hm:E.mwzimw.E.m%m.mwﬁowmwﬁm%
JO100HG L 1SoAIR%e EoE>o_aEm JO mco:_vcoo pue wia} w._wo_to
IE][Ve) Lou_ JNI oE _ovc: [1e} Jey} siadijo Jojpue EQEO IE]e) B:Qmohm_co 10 90IAISS pied 10 peaH se juawjuiodde ue Jo Jayo uy

-9q AewW ased ay) Sk ‘Je)s JO Jaquis J0 83)IWIW0D-gNS ‘980D
1Y} ‘1ounos 8yl 4o Jjeyaq uo uswyuiodde Jo uonouny ay) Buibieyosip Si Jels Jo Jaquuall 10 99))ILULL0I-gNS ‘99)ILULLOD B SI1aUMm
“JO |I2UNOY) 8Y) ‘[IUNOY 8y} JO JJels Jo Jaquiaw e se uosiad e Jo uswiuiodde ayy 0} uoneal ul ‘sueaw Jojuiodde, ‘ydeibesed sy uj

ss9%0.4d jJusunuioddy

"99IWW09-gNs 10 wwr_EEoo 1ey) ,6 [_oo_EmE e mp 1snwi #wc_nmo mE u_o [_mnEoE BUO )SE9| JB-05iAteSjo-pesH£B4o
JOBHGLIS 2oy} JUsWAO|dwa JO SUOIPUOD

ccm _EQ m_oo_to u_m_cu 10} ozq. m£ Japun __ﬁ ey mhoo_to ho\vcm Loo_to IE]e) zznmotm_co 10 90IAI3S pied JO pesH Jo |essiwsIp
Jo Juswiulodde ayj Jo uonouny ay) ‘Ajuoyine ay} Jo jjeyaq uo ‘buibieyosip si |1I0UNOD Sy} JO S3IIWIWOI-gNS B 10 9910 B aJaypp

JauIqed ay Jo 3|0y

"s|essiwsIp Jo joadsal ul sisquiswi
0} |[eadde o 1ybu e mojje Aew awi) 0} awiy wolj pajydope se sainpadsold pajejas pue Ayjiqedes ‘Aeuldiosip s jiounod syl (q)

Jonpuoosiw pabaje ojui Alinbul 1o uonebnsaAul Aue 10j AJBSSS28U S| JUSWSA[OAUl yons  (e)
alaym

1do0X0 |oAS|Io10aH URISISSYeoinieg{o-peal JUSWAOC|dWS JO SUORIPUOD pue Wid) S1821LQ JaIy) 10) DNI 2Ul Japun [jej jey] SJediyo
10/pue 19210 JaIyD Ajndaq/iaiy) 10 9JIA18S pled 10 peaH Mojad Jaoilo Aue Jo |essIWSIp 8yl Ul POAJOAUI 84 JOU [|IM SIO|IdUNOD

‘961

‘ShL

v |

Page 35



| 187

176.

In this paragraph, “dismissor” means, in relation to the dismissal of an member of staff of the Council, the Council or, where a
committee, sub-committee or another member of staff is discharging the function of dismissal on behalf of the Council, that
committee, sub-committee or other member of staff, as the case may be.

Notice of the dismissal of a Head of Paid Service, Chief/Deputy Chief Officer and/or officers that fall under the JNC for Chief Officers
term and conditions of employment a-Beputy-Chief-ExecutiveSLT Directoran-Assistant Director ora-Head-of Service{whe-is-a

Deputy- Chief Officer)-or-a-Chief or Depuby Chief Officer within-the-oneSeurce-group-of services—must not be given by the dismissor
until the appropriate notification has been advised to Cabinet, in accordance with regulations and objections have been received and

considered.

Dismissal of Head of Paid Service, Chief Finance Officer and Monitoring Officer

The Head of Paid Service, the Chief Finance Officer and the Monitoring Officer may not be dismissed by the Council unless the
procedure set out in the following paragraphs is complied with.

Independent Persons

age 36

The Council must invite relevant independent persons to be considered for appointment to a Panel, being a committee appointed c@.ﬁ:m
Council under Section 102(a) of the Local Government Act 1972 for the purposes of advising the Council on matters relating to the
dismissal of any of the officers referred to in Paragraph 167 above with a view to appointing at least two such persons to the Committee.

A ‘relevant independent person’ means any independent person appointed by the Council under Section 28(7) of the Localism Act 2011
or where there are fewer than two such persons, such independent persons as have been appointed by another authority or authorities
as the Council considers appropriate.

The Council is not required to appoint more than two relevant independent persons to its Panel but may do so if it wishes.

The Council must appoint to its Panel such relevant independent persons who have accepted an invitation issued in accordance with
paragraphs above with the following priority order:



ssasoud Ajljiqgede)

L 1L0OZ OV Wsl|edoT
3y} Japun uosJad juspuadaput se sjos s,uosiad jey) Jo joadsal ul uosiad Juspuadapul jey] 0} sjgeAed saa) Jo SOOUBMO||E ‘UoljBIBUNLWA.
JO [8AS] 8y} pe90Xa JoU }Jsnw [sued ay) 0} pajuiodde uosiad juspuadapul ue 0} [I9UNo)) ayl Aq pied sas} J0 uoessunwal Auy
Suosiad juapuadapu] jo uoneidunway
uonoe Aseundiosip ayj Jo 10slgns ayj} Jao1o sy} wol) suonejuasaldal Auy (9)
pue ‘|essiwsip pasodoid ay} ojui uonebiisaaul Aue Jo suoisnjouod ay| (q)
[Sued 8y} JO SuOIlepusWIWOdal JO SMAIA ‘@dIApe Auy (e)

:Jenoiyed Ul JUNOJoEe OjUl B)E} ISNW |I9UN0Y) 8Y) ‘[essIWsIp e aAoldde 0} JoU 10 Jaylaym uo 8)oA e Jo Bupje) ay) alojog

ssiwsig 0} jesodo.d Jo uopeulwidl}ag

"anoqge /gl ydeibeied ui 0} paisjal s199140 ay) Jo Aue ssiwsip o} [esodoud
e aAoidde 0] Jou J0 Jayjsym JapISUod 0} |1Iouno) ay) Jo Bunesw e aiojaq sAep Buppom Qg 1Se9)| je |aued Aue juiodde jsnuwi [1Iouno) ay |

|saued jo juawujoddy
"saljlIoyiny 1o Ajuoyiny Jayjoue Aq pajuiodde ussq sey oym uosiad juspuadapul Jueasjpl v (9)
Auoyiny ay} Aq psjuiodde usaq sey oym uositad Juspuadapul Jueasjal Jayjo Auy (q)

:10109]8 JuswuwIBA0b |e20] B s oym pue Aluoyiny ayl Agq pajuiodde usaq sey oym uosiad juspuadapul Jueasial v (B)

Tt |

ole

6102

Page 37



223

The process to be followed must be in accordance with the appropriate terms and conditions of employment for that member of
staff and the appropriate Council employment policy/procedure

Grievance process

The process to be followed for a grievance must be in accordance with the appropriate terms and conditions of employment for that
member of staff appropriate Council employment policy/procedure

Bullying and Harassment process

The process to be followed for a complaint must be in accordance with the appropriate terms and conditions of employment for that
member of staff appropriate Council employment policy/procedure.

Page 38



Appendix 2

Extract from the report to the Appointments Committee on 20" May 2008

SUBJECT: The process for making appointments to Chief Officer posts as a
consequence of a senior management realignment

REPORT DETAIL

In implementing changes to the Council’'s Corporate Management and Leadership
Teams it is necessary to determine the process of appointment most appropriate
for the appointment of chief officers (which phrase includes deputy chief officers),
consistent with the Constitution, the Council’s HR policies and the need to proceed
in a timely manner.

The conditions of services for members of the Corporate Management and
Leadership Teams are governed by the Joint Negotiating Committee for Chief
Officers in Local Government. The relevant INC handbook contains a redundancy
procedure which, in the absence of any locally agreed procedure, should be
followed in situations where a chief officer may be selected for redundancy. The
JNC procedure contains the following four provisions:

e Employing authorities should consult with any chief officer affected at the
earliest possible stage;

e A period of not less than 28 days should be allowed for the statutory
consultation period;

e The officer should be offered any suitable alternative employment that
may be available or which may become available as a consequence of
any reorganisation giving rise to the abolition of the chief officer’s post;
and

e The authority should bear in mind the possible application of
discretionary powers of premature retirement, and permissible
enhancements of benefits or redundancy payments, and the possibilities
of providing an alternative post or of extending the period of notice to
assist the chief officer in finding other employment.

The Council’s current own Managing Organisational Change and Redundancy
procedure, adopted by the Cabinet in April 205 as a result of the Joint Agreement
on Building a Heathy Organisation, specifically excludes chief officers from its
scope.

The process which the Committee is asked to adopt in this Report is thus modelled
on the JNC procedure, but with due regard for the principles contained in the BHO
procedure where these do not conflict with the national provisions. The
recommended process is set out below.

1. Voluntary Redundancy

Page 39



Governance Committee, 30" August, 2017

Where possible, the necessary reduction should be achieved through voluntary
redundancy. Any chief officer who wishes to be considered for voluntary
redundancy should be asked to inform the Head of Human Resources (or such
other person whom the Chief Executive may so designate for this purpose) in
writing by the relevant date that has been stipulated for this purpose. Such
requests must be made on an unconditional basis, i.e. not conditional on the
exercise of any permissible enhancements of benefits or redundancy payments.
Such requests will be determined by the Appointments Committee whose decision
shall be final.

In addition to considering applications from chief officers whose posts have been
deleted or otherwise directly affected as a consequence of the reorganisation in
guestion, the Committee may, at its absolute discretion, consider applications from
unaffected chief officers where, by so doing, this would create a suitable alternative
employment opportunity for an affected chief officer.

2. Assimilation Process

If the relevant chief officers are unsuccessful in their request or, alternatively, did
not wish to be considered for voluntary redundancy then they will be required to
participate in the assimilation process.

A ring-fence will be drawn around each chief officer post in the new structure. To
be eligible for inclusion in a particular ring-fence, it will be necessary to
demonstrate that the chief officer concerned is carrying out a discrete but
substantial ‘function’ that has been included in the portfolio of the new function.
The Head of Human Resources (or other designated officer) shall adopt a
common-sense approach to defining what constitutes a discrete but substantial
‘function’ having particular regard to nationally-recognised professional status and
whether its inclusion in a particular portfolio significantly changes the
responsibilities of the existing portfolio holder. Thus, children’s social services,
business systems, housing, regeneration and street care are all examples of what
could constitute a ‘function’ under this definition.

Role profiles for the roles in the new structure will be drawn up and these will be
evaluated independently. The Council currently uses the Hay Job Evaluation
methodology for evaluating its chief officer posts and, for so long as it continues to
do so, Hay Group will be the designated external evaluator.

Having determined the appropriate ring-fencing arrangements, role profiles for the
relevant posts in the new structure will be sent to the chief officers concerned,
which they should read and carefully consider any specific requirements that they
will need to meet in order to be appointed to any particular post.

All decisions on appointments will be taken by the Appointments Committee.

3. Uncontested Assimilations

Page 40



Governance Committee, 30" August, 2017

Where there is only one candidate for any of the available roles, and s/he satisfies
any statutory requirements necessary for appointment, then that candidate should
be appointed into the role without any further process. Failure to do so would
contravene the Council’s policy, adopted by the Cabinet in December 2003, to
minimise or avoid redundancies wherever possible and the unsuccessful candidate
could issue an Employment Tribunal claim and if that was successful this is likely
to result in the Council incurring significant additional costs.

4. Contested Assimilations

Where there is more than one candidate for a particular role, and they satisfy any
statutory requirements, then a competitive assimilation exercise will need to be
undertaken.

This exercise will have two stages, the first stage will take the form of an
assessment centre, managed by an external organisation appointed by the Head
of Human Resources (or other designated officer). The outcome will be the
production of a confidential, graded report on each candidate for consideration by
the Appointments Committee.

The second stage will take the form of an interview with the Appointments
Committee, with the Chief Executive, the Head of Human Resources (or other
designated officer) and a representative of the organisation managing the
assessment centre present in advisory capacities.

The Appointments Committee should select the candidate who best meets the
requirements set out for the role, based upon consideration of the assessment
centre report and the interview. Again, failure to make any appointment will incur
risks similar to those outlined for uncontested appointments.

5. Selection for Redundancy

Any chief officer who has not been appointed to any ring-fenced post will
automatically be selected for redundancy. Where the Head of Human Resources
(or other designated officer) has formed the view that there are no other posts on
the Council’s establishment that would constitute a suitable alternative offer of
employment then the chief officer concerned will be made redundant and be
entitled to receive redundancy payments in accordance with the terms of the
Council’'s policy on redundancy payments. Where the designated officer is not
professionally qualified in HR matters then s/he will be responsible for obtaining the
appropriate professional advice.

The date upon which any redundancy takes place will be determined taking
account of the effective date for the implementation of the new structure in
guestion, any legal and/or contractual requirements relating to matters such as
statutory consultation requirements and notice periods. These, and any other
steps necessary to implement the Committee’s decisions relating to individual chief
officers, shall be delegated to the Head of Human Resources (or other designated
officer).

Page 41



Governance Committee, 30" August, 2017

The Council may, at its discretion, offer outplacement counselling to a redundant
chief officer. Authority to offer outplacement counselling will be delegated to the
Head of Human Resources, in consultation with the chief officer's line manager.
Outplacement counselling will be provided through an outplacement organisation
selected and approved by the Council for this purpose and subject to a limit of
£5,000 per chief officer (or such limit that may from time to time be determined
following a market testing exercise of outplacement organisations). The chief
officer will be offered a choice of two organisations. Budgetary provision will be
made by the employing directorate.

6. Redeployment

Where, however, the Head of Human Resources (or other designated officer) has
formed the view that suitable alternative employment may be available, the chief
officer will be required to participate in a process which mirrors the process
described above for contested assimilations.

Where the Appointments Committee is satisfied that the chief officer concerned
meets the minimum requirements necessary to perform the alternative role, then
s/he will be appointed to that role.

Where alternative roles exist which are not deemed to constitute suitable
alternative employment for the chief officer concerned then these may, subject to
the agreement of both the Appointments Committee and the chief officer
concerned, be designated as an alternative employment opportunity and ring-
fenced to the chief officer concerned. If the chief officer does not agree then s/he
will be made redundant. The chief officer will be required to participate in the two
stage appointment process and, if successful, will be appointed to the post subject
to a 28 day trial period. If, following the trial period, either party deems the trial
period to be unsuccessful then the chief officer will be declared redundant and be
entitled to receive redundancy payments as if the trial period had not existed.
Where, following a successful trial period, the chief officer accepts the post then
s/he will do so on the terms and conditions that normally pertain to that post and
will not be eligible for salary protection.

7. Right of Appeal against Selection for Redundancy

In accordance with the legal requirements in force and the Conditions of Service
applicable to staff falling within the scope of the JNC for Chief Officers, a chief
officer selected for redundancy has the right of appeal to an Appeals Committee of
elected Members. The Appeals Committee should comprise three Members and
be drawn from membership of the Governance Committee, excluding those of its
Members serving on the Appointments Committee who took the decision under
appeal.

The Appeals Committee’s decision shall be final and no further avenues of appeal
will be open to the chief officer within the Council.

Page 42



_ Agenda Item 7
%¢ Havering

g LONDON BOROUGH

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
30 August 2017

Subject Heading: Overview & Scrutiny review — cross party
review group terms of reference

CMT Lead: Andrew Blake-Herbert

Report Author and contact details: Andrew Beesley
Head of Democratic Services
andrew.beesley@onesource.co.uk

Policy context: Overview & Scrutiny

Financial summary: There will be a series of costs associated with
the provision of training

The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council Objectives

Communities making Havering [l
Places making Havering [l
Opportunities making Havering (]
Connections making Havering (]

SUMMARY

At its meeting on 14 June 2017, Council approved a motion for the creation of a
cross party review group to consider recommending changes to the current
overview & scrutiny arrangements. This report proposes the terms of reference for
that review group.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Committee agrees the terms of reference for the cross party review group
as set out in Appendix 1.

Page 43


mailto:andrew.beesley@onesource.co.uk

Governance Committee, 30 August 2017

REPORT DETAIL

1.1 Council agreed at its meeting on 14 June 2017 to establish a cross party
review group of the overview & scrutiny arrangements. The review group
will submit its recommendations for consideration by the Governance
Committee in time for next year’s local elections in May.

1.2  This report sets out the proposed terms of references for the cross-party
review group.

IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS

Financial implications and risks:

There are no financial implications associated with this report.

Legal implications and risks:

There are no legal implications associated with this report

Human Resources implications and risks:

There are no human resources implications associated with this report.
Equalities implications and risks:

There are no equalities implications associated with this report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

Page 44



Appendix 1

TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY CROSS-PARTY
REVIEW GROUP

Role and function of the Review Group
1  The remit of the group is to review the existing structure and operation of
Overview & Scrutiny, and to make any reports and recommendations to the

Governance Committee for its consideration.

2  The group is required to submit its final report to Governance Committee by no
later than March 2018.

Membership

3.  The group will consist of six Members, appointed from each of the political
groups.

4. The appointments shall be solely at the discretion of each of the political
groups.

5. The Chairman will be appointed at the first meeting of the group.

Substitutes

6. A group may appoint a substitute to attend in the place of the named member
provided that the relevant officer is notified prior to the commencement of the
meeting.

Co-optees

7. The group shall be entitled to co-opt any non-voting Members as it thinks fit
appropriate to assist in delivering its remit.

Meetings:
8.  The group will meet at approximately monthly intervals with an agenda that will
include monitoring progress against achievement of project objectives, any

problems or issues encountered and examples of good practice.

9.  An agenda will be produced and issued to members at least five working days
before each meeting.

10. Members will be invited to contribute items to the agenda if they wish.

11. Notes of each meeting, including action points and owners, will be circulated to
all participants no later than one week after the meeting.

Page 45



12. Democratic Services will be responsible for producing and circulating the
agenda and notes.

Quorum

13. The quorum for meeting do the Group shall be three.

Conduct of Meetings

14.

15.

The conduct of meetings shall be regulated by the Chairman (or other person
chairing the meeting) in accordance with the general principles and conventions
which apply to the conduct of local authority committee meetings.

In particular, however, where any person other than a full or co-opted member
has been allowed or invited to address the meeting the Chairman (or other
person chairing the meeting) may specify a time limit for their contribution, in
advance of its commencement which shall not be less than five minutes. If
someone making such a contribution exceeds the time limit given the Chairman
(or other person chairing the meeting) may stop him or her.

16. The Chairman (or other person chairing the meeting) may also structure a
discussion and limit the time allowed for questioning by members of the group.

Voting

17. Any matter will be decided by a simple majority of those members voting and

present in the room at the time the motion was put. This will be by a show of
hands or if no dissent, by the affirmation of the meeting. If there are equal
votes for and against, the Chairman or other person chairing the meeting will
have a second or casting vote. There will be no restriction on how the Chairman
chooses to exercise a casting vote.

Code of Conduct

18.

Members of the Group must comply with the Code of Conduct applicable to
Councillors under the Local Government Act 2000.

Page 46



Agenda Item 8

a¢ Havering

i LONDON BOROUGH

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
30" AUGUST 2017

Subject Heading: APPOINTMENTS TO OTHER
ORGANISATIONS, 2017/18

SLT Lead: Kathryn Robinson
Monitoring Officer
01708 432242

Report Author and contact details: Jacqui Barr
Senior Democratic Services Support
Officer
jacqui.barr@onesource.co.uk
01708 432439

Policy context: The Council appoints Members and
others to serve on a variety of other
bodies

Financial summary: There are no significant financial
implications.

The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council
Objectives

Havering will be clean and its environment will be cared for [X]
People will be safe, in their homes and in the community 0
Residents will be proud to live in Havering 1

I SUMMARY I

The Council makes appointments to a large number of other organisations, some
statutory, others voluntary.

Since the new executive governance arrangements came into force, responsibility for
making some appointments has passed from this Committee to the Leader of the
Council but the Constitution provides that in the case of non-executive appointments, it
is for this Committee to make decisions

Page 47



Governance Committee, 30" August 2017

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Committee:

1. Appoint a nominative trustee until February 2018.

REPORT DETAIL

1. HORNCHURCH HOUSING TRUST:

The Council appoints a number of nominative trustees to the Trust for four year
terms of office expiring in sequence over each four year period.

Mr Ivor Cameron resigned from the Trust on 24 July 2017 after many years
service, owing to ill health. A successor needs to be appointed for the remainder
of the term of office, expiring in February 2018.

It should be noted that in accordance with the Trust’'s Scheme, the person
appointed may be, but need not be, a Member of the Council.

| IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS |

Equalities and Social Inclusion Implications and Risks

There are no specific implications or risks. Appointments should be made with the
Council’s equalities policies in mind.

Legal, Finance and Environmental Implications and Risks

These appointments are administrative and have no direct legal, financial or
environmental implications or risks. In some cases, membership of an organisation is
dependent upon the Council paying a subscription: where relevant, the subscription will
be met from within an appropriate budget provision.

Members who sit on outside bodies will need to consider whether (a) they are required
to register their interests with the Council and, where appropriate, declare the interests

Page 48



GovernanceComnﬂttee,30th August 2017

at meetings and (b) seek advice when they are potentially involved in Council decisions
that may affect the outside body. As there is no remuneration for the appointments,
they are very unlikely to be discloseable pecuniary interests. Trustee status means that
the trustee must always act in the best interests of the trust. The Monitoring Officer is
available to provide advice as and when necessary.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	5 CONSTITUTION UPDATE
	Members code of conduct tracked changes

	6 CHANGES TO THE STAFF EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURE RULES
	Staff Employment Procedure Rules tracked changes
	Havering Governance Committee Report - Chief Officer Appointment Process.._

	7 OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY REVIEW - CROSS PARTY REVIEW GROUP TERMS OF REFERENCE
	O&S Proposed Terms of Reference

	8 APPOINTMENTS TO OTHER ORGANISATIONS, 2017/18

